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Vital Brooklyn RFP Sites A, B C, and D Addendum 1 
RFP Issue Date: April 26, 2018 

Addendum 1 Issue Date: June 18, 2018 
 
 

Contents of the Addendum 
 
A. Update Issued on Interfaith Herkimer (Site A): The number of parking 
spaces has decreased from 110 spaces to approximately 90 spaces to be 
located on the Interfaith property on Block 1705, Lot 1 in parking stackers. 
Please see Question 26 in the Q&A for more information regarding updated 
requirements for proposals.  
 
B. Questions and Answers- Enclosed is a summary of questions and answers 
in response to questions sent to the HCR Vital Brooklyn RFP email address.  
 
C. Contact Information- Contact Information is provided for those individuals 
who downloaded the RFP and indicated that they are willing to share their 
contact information.  
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B. Questions and Answers- Enclosed is a summary of questions and answers 
in response to questions sent to the HCR Vital Brooklyn RFP email address.  
 
Overall  

1. What are the addresses of the Vital Brooklyn Buildings Sites A-D?   
A: The best method of identifying sites is through the Building Block and Lots 
(BBL), which are listed in the RFP for each site. The BBLs will provide an 
accurate location.  

 
2. Where in the RFP does the applicant agree to standards for accessible 

(Americans with Disabilities Act-compliant) units, and where does the 
applicant assert the number of accessible units as part of the proposal? 
A: In Section X. Regulations and Guidelines, D. Accessibility on Page 37 of the 
RFP, it is stated that, “Construction of the project must comply with accessibility 
requirements of all applicable laws including, without limited to the New York City 
Building Code, the Fair Housing Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, and 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.”  
 

3. Will you make a list available of interested developers in order to form 
collaborations?  
A: Yes. This addendum contains a contact list for parties that downloaded the 
RFP and agreed to share their contact information.   

 
4. Financing Options: Should we assume that HCR will be the primary 

financing source, with HPD and HDC sources as gap fillers? 
A: Yes.  
 

5. Are we able to tour the sites before we bid on them? 
A: Respondents are allowed to walk the perimeter of the sites independently, but 
the agency will not be offering site tours at this time.  
 

6. Approximately how many residential units do you expect to be built at each 
of the sites? 
A: HCR does not have specific unit counts designated for each site; proposals 
must meet the requirements set forth in the RFP for each site and respond to the 
Development Objectives for each site.  
 

7. RFPs have been issued for five of the 11 Vital Brooklyn sites. When do you 
expect the RFPs to be issued for the other six sites? What are the 
addresses and descriptions of the other sites? 
A: The Vital Brooklyn RFP for the additional sites will be issued in 2018. The 
addresses and descriptions of those sites will be provided upon the RFP release.  
 

8. Can a respondent just submit an application for one piece of the 
development plan, i.e. housing? 
A: Respondents cannot submit only one part of a proposal; respondents who 
only want to complete one part of the proposal must be part of a Development 
Team in order to submit a completed proposal.  
 

9. Are the Community and Hospital Priorities listed for each site to be 
considered requirements or preferences for this RFP? They contain many 
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statements of what MUST be included, some of which seem to contradict 
other sections of the RFP. Please clarify what dictates for review and 
scoring purposes. 
A: Members of the New York State Assembly created Community Advisory 
Councils that provided HCR with priorities for the redevelopment of sites in their 
districts. These priorities have been provided in V. Development Objectives for 
each site, as listed in the RFP. Proposals’ responsiveness to these priorities shall 
account for 15% of the competitive scoring.  
  

10. The RFP states that, “Hard costs attributable to parking only used by 
Hospital and Health Care Center employees and hard costs attributable to 
the ambulatory care center should be listed as separate line items in the 
Development Budget tab of Form F.” Does this mean that there will be a 
separate funding sources for these hard costs?  
A: There will not be separate funding sources for the hard costs attributable to 
the hospital and ambulatory care center uses; these costs should be underwritten 
as part of the affordable housing budget (this is only used as a helpful breakout 
for the agency).  

 
11. Tab F instructions ask for market comparables for all underwritten income 

assumptions; please confirm if that is only for community facility/retail 
space (except for medical space for use by hospitals) and confirm that it is 
not intended for residential unit rents. 
A: Market comparables are required for community facility and retail space. 
 

12. One competitive priority is to provide 100% affordable units to a range of 
incomes.  Please clarify if 100% affordable means all units must serve 
households < 60% AMI (or another definition).   
A: A 100% affordable building means that no units can be unregulated, market 
rate units. Unit mixes must conform to HCR term sheets and the Development 
Objectives for each site.  
 

13. Do applications for any of the sites have to have units at 90% AMI or 
higher? Do applications for any of the sites have to have units above 60% 
AMI? The Community and Hospital Priorities states that there MUST be 
units at 30%, 60% and 90% AMI (or higher); does that qualify as 100% 
affordable and is that the priority income mix? 
A: Proposals should meet the Development Objectives for each site, which 
include serving households with a range of incomes, including those up to 90% 
AMI.  
 

14. Regulations and Guidelines includes a requirement for warranty coverage, 
referencing Section 777(a) of the New York State General Business Law 
which seems applicable to new home sales, not multifamily rental 
projects.  Please confirm that this is not applicable to multifamily rental 
projects or community facility space.  
A: Confirmed, this law is not applicable to multifamily rental projects or 
community facility spaces. 
 

15. For Appendix E, item #1, please note that NYC DEP allows only one water 
and sewer connection per building so while the water can be submetered, 
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water and sewer connections for the ambulatory care space will be shared 
with the residential building.  
A: Selected development team(s) will work with NYC DEP to ensure that 
metering is handled appropriately.  
 

16. For Appendix E, item #11, please clarify what is meant by ambulance 
access – just dedicated parking in front of the building or something more?  
A: Curbside access to ambulance/ambulettes should be made available. 
 

17. The “Zoning and Land Use” sections under “A. Interfaith Herkimer (Site 
A),” “C. Interfaith Broadway (Site C),” and “D. Interfaith Bishop Walker (Site 
D)” all state as follows: “Proposals for the Site [must] meet current as-of-
right zoning”.  However, the text under Interfaith Broadway also states that 
the Site “is located in an area that is eligible for zoning … incentives 
through the FRESH program.” Can proposals include potential applications 
for FRESH zoning incentives, and will this still be considered “as-of-right” 
zoning?  Also, if there are other authorizations or certifications available in 
the Zoning Resolution that do not involve ULURP but are instead 
administrative in nature, may those be included in the proposals? 
A: Proposals can include FRESH Program zoning incentives as long as the 
proposal meets all of the FRESH Program selection criteria. Proposals can 
include other administrative authorizations or certifications.  
 

18. What departments, parties, and professions will be reviewing the 
submissions at the state level?  
A: NYS Homes and Community Renewal staff will be reviewing submissions.  
 

19. Is it accurate that $1 per parcel can be assumed as the nominal acquisition 
price?  
A: Please refer to VI. Financing Information and Conditions, page. 23 of the RFP 
for information on the disposition price. 
 

20. If a proposal does not include commercial space, is that scored 
unfavorably? 
A: Proposals should follow the Development Objectives for each site.  

 
21. For Tab J, section Building Design, is there a limit to the number of 24”x36” 

hard copy sheets/panels that can be submitted? 
A: There is no limit to the number of hard copy sheets that can be submitted.  
 

22. For Tab J, section Building Design, is it up to the respondent to determine 
appropriate scale of drawings? 
A: A ¼” = 1 foot scale is preferred.  
 

23. Does the State have any information regarding the environmental 
conditions on the sites? 
A: Not at this time.  
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Site A 
24. Is there monthly parking income generated from the parking spaces used 

by hospital staff? Who will pay for the costs of operating the new parking 
facility?  
A: Assume that parking income and operating costs for the parking will provide a 
break-even for the project.   
 

25. Are there temporary parking requirements during construction?  
A: Yes. This will be worked out with the Hospital post-selection. 
 

26. Is it an RFP requirement to replace all parking spaces in the new 
development? Can the new parking be attended versus self-park?  
Does the parking need to be operated 24 hours a day, 7 days a week?  
A: In lieu of onsite replacement parking, please submit a narrative proposal to 
provide, either through long-term lease or purchase, parking stackers to 
accommodate approximately 90 cars, to be located on the Interfaith 
property on Block 1705, Lot 1. The stackers would be operational from 7:00 
AM to 8:00 PM, seven days a week. The proposal should include a timeline for 
the stackers to be up and running, including procuring the necessary permits, 
and account for the costs of maintenance, insurance, and operations. 
 

27. Is there separate capital financing that can be assumed for the 
construction of the parking?  
A: No. 
 

28. Please clarify what portion of the community facility space should be 
included in the development budget – just core and shell construction with 
design and fit-out to be paid separately (off-budget)? 
A: Yes, just core and shell construction should be included in the development 
budget.  
 

29. The RFP indicates that proposals should prioritize housing for seniors with 
on-site support services? Can applications assume that HCR will provide 
any Section 8 Project Based Vouchers for such units?  
A: In Section VII. Financing Information and Conditions, the RFP states that 
submissions must include at least one financing scenario that does not include 
competitive sources; Section 8 Project Based Vouchers are considered a 
competitive source. An alternative financing scenario may be submitted that 
contemplates the use of Section 8.   

 
30. Please confirm that no rent or revenue should be underwritten for the 

minimum 6,000 SF medical space. 
A: No rent or revenue should be underwritten for the Ambulatory Care Centers.  

 
31. In the Hospital Priorities section, it indicates that the “Hospital will only pay 

for the utilities necessary to operate the space.” What about cleaning, 
maintenance and repairs, replacements and items like sprinkler and fire 
alarm systems operation in addition to utilities?  
A: The Hospital will cover the necessary maintenance of the facility.  
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32. Are both an urgent care and primary care practice required? Does the 6,000 
square feet requested include both facilities? On page 12, the RFP 
references “a minimum of 6,000 square feet of the ground floor requires a 
core and shell build-out for use as an urgent care or primary care practice.” 
Under the Community and Hospital Priorities on pg. 14, the RFP states that 
“the Hospital requires approximately 6,000 square feet on the ground floor 
of the mixed-use development to be built-out for urgent care and a small 
primary care practice.  
A: Respondents are only required to build 6,000sf core and shell for a medical 
facility.  
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Site B 
33. The RFP states that for site B, proposals may override existing zoning but 

that a separate discretionary approvals process would be necessary. 
Please describe the separate discretionary process in terms of decision 
makers, timeline, opportunities for public input and any other relevant 
information.  
A: Upon agreement from Empire State Development (“ESD”) to move forward 
with a project that includes a zoning override, an environmental review process 
would be undertaken to determine impacts. Such environmental review process 
can take 12-24 months, depending on the project.  At the completion of the 
environmental review process, the essential terms of the transaction, design 
guidelines, and zoning overrides necessary to effectuate the project would be 
identified and effectuated in a General Project Plan (“GPP”) administered by ESD 
and subject to a public discretionary approval process under the Urban 
Development Corporation Act 174/68 (“UDC Act”). This process includes actions 
taken to satisfy SEQRA, the UDC Act and, if applicable, the Public Authorities 
Accountability Act (“PAAA”). Opportunities for public input will be available at 
multiple points in the process, including but not limited to, a public scoping 
session, public board meetings and a public hearing on the draft Environmental 
Impact Statement (“DEIS”) and GPP. In addition, a community advisory 
committee would be formed by ESD at the start of the environmental review 
process. Respondents who propose a zoning override should submit a brief 
project narrative describing the project built with as-of-right zoning. 

34. If the Respondent overrides existing zoning for Site B, what rezoning 
should be assumed?  
A: The Zoning should be contextual to the surrounding area. 
 

35. The “Zoning and Land Use” section under “B. Brookdale Hospital (Site B)” 
states that proposals “can propose a new zoning mix that aids in meeting 
the Site’s Development Objectives set forth in Section V.B.”  Does this 
language contemplate any rezoning actions pursuant to New York City’s 
Uniform Land Use Review Procedure (“ULURP”), or does it merely refer to 
zoning overrides pursuant to the “discretionary approvals process through 
Empire State Development”? 
A: Projects will not need to go through ULURP; projects will only be subject to 
ESD’s discretionary approvals process.  

 
36. If ESD is involved in the site for zoning override purposes, what should the 

applicant budget for their fees/reimbursement?  Can HCR provide a budget 
number or estimate to include in the development budget?  
A: At this time, it is pre-mature to provide a budget without knowing more details 
about the project. Examples of costs and expenses include, but are not limited to, 
consultant fees for outside legal counsel to represent ESD in the transaction, 
environmental experts to prepare an EIS and ensure SEQRA compliance, and 
architectural consultants to review the design guidelines in the General Project 
Plan (“GPP”). Regarding ESD staff time, ESD will provide timesheets showing 
direct work on the project. If relevant, HCR and ESD can provide a more detailed 
cost estimate for ESD’s costs once a Designated Developer has been selected. 
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37. The RFP states that if ESD is involved that “ESD would have an interest in 
the property at closing.”  What type of interest would ESD have in the 
property at closing?  
A: In order to effectuate a General Project Plan (“GPP”), ESD must be in the title 
chain, including but not limited to a fee ownership or a lease structure. 

 
38. Please confirm that no rent or revenue should be underwritten for the 

6,000-18,000 SF of medical space. 
A: No rent or revenue will be underwritten for the medical space.  

 
39. In the Hospital Priorities section, it indicates that the “Hospital will only pay 

for the utilities necessary to operate the space.” What about cleaning, 
maintenance and repairs, replacements and items like sprinkler and fire 
alarm systems operation in addition to utilities?  
A: The Hospital will cover the necessary maintenance of the facility.  

 
40. The Community and Hospital Priorities states that there MUST be a priority 

for the population mix indicated, so please confirm that the mix of middle-
income units, senior housing, and supportive housing need to all be 
included in the proposal response.  Or is this a preference and not a 
requirement? 
A: Proposals will be scored on the Development Objectives provided for each 
site to the extent feasible.  

 
41. It appears that Brookdale is the intended direct user of the 6,000-18,000 SF 

of community facility space. We’re directed in the RFP to not talk to them, 
so how are we supposed to come up with a detailed community facility 
plan for the space?  Are we supposed to talk to other prospective medical 
service providers?  
A: The community facility plan for the medical space (18,000 square feet) will be 
developed in consultation between the Hospital and the Designated Developer. 

 
42. In the Hospital Priorities section it states that the “Hospital requires 

approximately 18,000 square feet of space on the ground floor levels” but 
earlier in the RFP it states that a minimum of 6,000 and a maximum of 
18,000 square feet to be provided. Is 18,000 square feet the amount that 
needs to be provided? Under the Community and Hospital Priorities on pg. 
17, the RFP states that “the Hospital requires approximately 18,000 square 
feet of space on the ground floor levels of the development.” Are 18,000 
square feet required on the ground floor?  
A: The 18,000sf medical space should be located on the basement and/or the 
first floor of the Project for programming, which includes Diagnostic Imaging and 
some combination of ambulatory specialty care.  
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Site C:  
 

43. Does the minimum of 5,000 square feet on the ground floor include both 
the relocated mental health outpatient program as well as the co-located 
primary care center? If not, is there a minimum square footage required for 
the primary care center? 
A: The 5,000sf includes both the mental health outpatient program as well as the 
co-located primary care center.  
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Site D: 
44. Is it a requirement to replace the 40 parking spaces on the site? 

A: Site D shall be used for the development of housing and community facility 
uses; the full zoning lot should be used to accommodate a feasible number of 
replacement parking spaces and to generate floor area. The Bishop Walker 
Health Care Center shall not be demolished. 
 

45. Can the new parking be attended versus self park? Who will pay for the 
costs of operating the new parking facility? If the developer is to pay for 
the cost of operating the parking facility, can fees be charged for parking 
and if so are there any limits to the fees that can be charged?  
A: Assume that parking income and operating costs for the parking will provide a 
break-even for the project.   
 

46. Is there separate capital financing that can be assumed for the 
construction of the parking?  
A: No. 
 

47. The RFP requires approximately 12,000-15,000 square feet of ground floor 
community facility space. The full site is only 13,300 square feet and a 
portion of the ground floor needs to contain the residential lobby, 
mailboxes, elevators and 2 egress stairs. If it is not possible to fit the 
minimum of 12,000 square feet on the ground floor, can the additional 
space be put in the cellar or does it need to be on the 2nd floor 
A: The community facility space should be accommodated on the ground floor.  
 

48. The maximum zoning floor area of the site is currently 26,600 square feet. 
The RFP indicates that proposals for this site must meet current as-of-right 
zoning.  With the minimum of 12,000 square feet of community facility 
space that leaves 14,600 square feet for residential. After deducting for 
stairs, elevators, lobby and potentially all or a portion of corridors and 
other ancillary spaces, that leaves a very small number of residential units.  
Does the current as-of-right zoning need to be complied with for this site?  
Is this otherwise feasible as an affordable housing site, even when 
assuming use of competitive financing sources? 
A: Site D is a portion of a larger zoning lot. For the purposes of calculating floor 
area, the entire zoning lot should be used, including unbuilt floor area.  
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C. Contact Information- Contact Information is provided for those individuals 
who downloaded the RFP and indicated that they are willing to share their 
contact information.  
 
 

Name Organization Email 

Alan Bell B&B Urban bell@bandburban.com  

Alen Moghaddam  Urban Architectural Initiatives, RA, PC amoghaddam@uai-ny.com  

Amy Hau WXY Architecture + Urban Design amy@wxystudio.com  

Amy Larovere A. Larovere Consulting LLC amy.larovere@alconsulting.us  

Amy Stokes Monadnock astokes@monadnockdevelopment.com  

Andrea Kretchmer Xenolith Partners LLC andrea@xenolithpartners.com  

Andrew Foley Jonathan Rose Companies afoley@rosecompanies.com  

Ardeny Goris John Ciardullo Associates agoris@ciardullo.com  

Arlo chase SUS achase@sus.org  

Blaise Rastello Gilbane Development Company brastello@gilbaneco.com  

Blanca Ramirez Hudson Housing Capital blanca.ramirez@hudsonhousing.com  

Brian Heeger Duvernay + Brooks, LLC bheeger@duvernaybrooks.com  

Cara McAteer Breaking Ground cmcateer@breakingground.org  

Carlton Brown Direct Invest Development, LLC carlton@di-development.com  

Carole Gordon The Bridge cgordon@thebridgeny.org  

Carter Lard Penda Aiken Inc. clard@pendaaiken.com  

Cathy J Sharp Care for the Homeless csharp@cfhnyc.org  

Celida Guzman Best Development Group celida@bestdevelopmentgroup.com  

Christine Noel Genesis Companies cnoel@genesiscompanies.com  

Christine Velia Concern for Independent Living cvelia@concernhousing.org  

Christopher Cirillo 
Ascendant Neighborhood 
Development Corporation 

cirilloc@ascendant.nyc  

Cindy Freidmutter CLF Consulting c.freidmutter@gmail.com  

mailto:bell@bandburban.com
mailto:amoghaddam@uai-ny.com
mailto:amy@wxystudio.com
mailto:amy.larovere@alconsulting.us
mailto:astokes@monadnockdevelopment.com
mailto:andrea@xenolithpartners.com
mailto:afoley@rosecompanies.com
mailto:agoris@ciardullo.com
mailto:achase@sus.org
mailto:brastello@gilbaneco.com
mailto:blanca.ramirez@hudsonhousing.com
mailto:bheeger@duvernaybrooks.com
mailto:cmcateer@breakingground.org
mailto:carlton@di-development.com
mailto:cgordon@thebridgeny.org
mailto:clard@pendaaiken.com
mailto:csharp@cfhnyc.org
mailto:celida@bestdevelopmentgroup.com
mailto:cnoel@genesiscompanies.com
mailto:cvelia@concernhousing.org
mailto:cirilloc@ascendant.nyc
mailto:c.freidmutter@gmail.com
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David A Rowe CAMBA/CAMBA Housing Ventures davidr@camba.org  

Deborah A 
Widerkehr 

MLappin & Associates, LLC deborah@mlappinllc.com  

Deborah 
VanAmerongen 

Nixon Peabody dvanamerongen@nixonpeabody.com  

Delphine Daniels 
ROGERS PARTNERS Architects + 
Urban Designers 

ddaniels@rogersarchitects.com  

Diana Kichler  Curtis + Ginsberg Architects dkichler@cplusga.com  

Diana Nelson 
The Hope Center Development 
Corporation 

info@hopecenterdevelopment.org  

Diane Louard-
Michel 

Unique People Services dianel@uniquepeopleservices.org  

Dionne Nelson Laurel Street Residential dnelson@laurelstreetres.com  

Douglas Apple 1811 Consulting dougapple@1811Consulting.com  

Elizabeth Candela Map Architects ecandela@maparchitects.com  

Emilio Dorcely Bridge Street Development Corp edorcely@bsdcorp.org  

Emily Blank LISC NYC eblank@lisc.org  

Evelyn Wolff Selfhelp Community Service ewolff@selfhelp.net  

Fernando Villa 
Magnusson Architecture & Planning 
PC 

fvilla@maparchitects.com  

Frank Dubinsky Monadnock Development fdubinsky@monadnockdevelopment.com  

Frank Monterisi Related fmonterisi@related.com  

Gabriela Petrova Mega Development gpetrova@megagroup.nyc  

Gail Greenidge Bridging Access to Care ggreenidge@bac-ny.org  

Gail Kutac Silman kutac@silman.com  

Gale Kaufman Duvernay + Brooks LLC gkaufman@duvernaybrooks.com  

Gary Rodney CREA, LLC grodney@creallc.com  

Gib Veconi 
Prospect Heights Neighborhood 
Development Council 

gib@veconi.com  

Gordon Bell TPC gordobell@gmail.com  

Guido Hartray Marvel Architects ghartray@marvelarchitects.com  

Hammad Graham Brisa Builders hammadgraham@brisabuilders.com  

mailto:davidr@camba.org
mailto:deborah@mlappinllc.com
mailto:dvanamerongen@nixonpeabody.com
mailto:ddaniels@rogersarchitects.com
mailto:dkichler@cplusga.com
mailto:info@hopecenterdevelopment.org
mailto:dianel@uniquepeopleservices.org
mailto:dnelson@laurelstreetres.com
mailto:dougapple@1811Consulting.com
mailto:ecandela@maparchitects.com
mailto:edorcely@bsdcorp.org
mailto:eblank@lisc.org
mailto:ewolff@selfhelp.net
mailto:fvilla@maparchitects.com
mailto:fdubinsky@monadnockdevelopment.com
mailto:fmonterisi@related.com
mailto:gpetrova@megagroup.nyc
mailto:ggreenidge@bac-ny.org
mailto:kutac@silman.com
mailto:gkaufman@duvernaybrooks.com
mailto:grodney@creallc.com
mailto:gib@veconi.com
mailto:gordobell@gmail.com
mailto:ghartray@marvelarchitects.com
mailto:hammadgraham@brisabuilders.com
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Henri Rivers Drumriver Consultants, Inc. audits@drumriver.com  

Henry Hatch Bright Power hhatch@brightpower.com  

Humberto Martinez Brooklyn Community Services hmartinez@wearebcs.org  

Illyse Kaplan Comunilife, Inc. ikaplan@comunilife.org  

Ira Brown Briarwood Organization ibrown@briarwoodorg.com  

Ismene Speliotis MHANY ispelioits@mutualhousingny.org  

Jacob Bluestone Blue Sea Development Co., LLC jacob.bluestone@blueseadev.com  

Jay Marcus Fifth Avenue Committee jmarcus@fifthave.org  

Jeff Nemetsky BCHS jeffn@bchands.org  

Jeffrey E Dunston NEBHDCO jdunston@nebhdco.org  

Jeffrey Taub AKRF, Inc. jtaub@akrf.com  

Jessica Hooberman Healthy Communities Consulting jhooberman@gmail.com  

John Napolitano Community Solutions jnapolitano@community.solutions  

Jose Coello Sr. Brisa Builders Development jcoello@brisabuilders.com  

Jose Leon St. Nicks Alliance jleon@stnicksalliance.org  

Joshua Soble Bright Power jsoble@brightpower.com  

Julie Behrens SUS jbehrens@sus.org  

Karen Gorman Federation of Organizations kgorman@fedoforg.org  

Larry Gordon The Doe Fund lgordon@doe.org  

Lee Jaffe New Destiny Housing Corporation ljaffe@newdestinyhousing.org  

Les Bluestone Blue Sea Development Company les.bluestone@blueseadev.com  

Lisa Trub Selfhelp Community Services, Inc ltrub@selfhelp.net  

Louise Cohen 
Primary Care Development 
Corporation 

lcohen@pcdc.org  

Luanne Konopko RKTB Architects, P.C. lkonopko@rktb.com  

Marcel Garon The NRP Group mgaron@nrpgroup.com  

Martin Krongold Public Resources, Inc. MartinKrongold@msn.com  

mailto:audits@drumriver.com
mailto:hhatch@brightpower.com
mailto:hmartinez@wearebcs.org
mailto:ikaplan@comunilife.org
mailto:ibrown@briarwoodorg.com
mailto:ispelioits@mutualhousingny.org
mailto:jacob.bluestone@blueseadev.com
mailto:jmarcus@fifthave.org
mailto:jeffn@bchands.org
mailto:jdunston@nebhdco.org
mailto:jtaub@akrf.com
mailto:jhooberman@gmail.com
mailto:jnapolitano@community.solutions
mailto:jcoello@brisabuilders.com
mailto:jleon@stnicksalliance.org
mailto:jsoble@brightpower.com
mailto:jbehrens@sus.org
mailto:kgorman@fedoforg.org
mailto:lgordon@doe.org
mailto:ljaffe@newdestinyhousing.org
mailto:les.bluestone@blueseadev.com
mailto:ltrub@selfhelp.net
mailto:lcohen@pcdc.org
mailto:lkonopko@rktb.com
mailto:mgaron@nrpgroup.com
mailto:MartinKrongold@msn.com
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Matthew Brian Residual Development Group LLC 
matthewbrian@residualdevelopmentgrou
pllc.com  

Maureen Italiano Saint Joseph's Medical center mitaliano@svwsjmc.org  

Maygen Moore CSH maygenmoore@gmail.com  

Melissa Rosenberg Supportive Housing Network of NY mrosenberg@shnny.org  

Michael Hunter Trinity Financial mhunter@trinityfinancial.com  

Michael Kornspun Pennrose Properties mkornspun@pennrose.com  

Michael Wadman Phipps Houses mwadman@phippsny.org  

Michelle de la Uz Fifth Avenue Committee mdelauz@fifthave.org  

Nicole Etienne ICL nicole.r.etienne@iclinc.net  

Pablo Vengoechea 
V+B Architecture & Urban Planning, 
LLP 

pv@vb-architects.com  

Patrick Hart 
CUNY Institute for State and Local 
Governance 

patrick.hart@islg.cuny.edu  

Patrick Taylor Shorewood Real Estate Group ptaylor@shorewoodgrp.com  

Paul Williams Paul Williams, Attorney paul.will214@gmail.com  

Peter Beck Forsyth Street Advisors pbeck@forsythstreet.com  

Rachel Goodfriend A. Larovere Consulting rachel.goodfriend@alconsulting.us  

Ralph Declet Acacia Network Inc. rdeclet@acacianetwork.org  

Rebecca Sauer 
Supportive Housing Network of New 
York 

rsauer@shnny.org  

Riva Kelton The Doe Fund riva@doe.org  

Robert Diamond Tishman Speyer rdiamond@tishmanspeyer.com  

Robert Sanborn Robert Sanborn Development rsanborn@robertsanborndev.com  

Rose Anello SCO Family of Services ranello@sco.org  

Salvatore J D'Avola Neighborhood Restore sdavola@neighborhoodrestore.org  

Samuel Biele-
Fisher 

Bright Power sfisher@brightpower.com  

Sandy Rozario Thorobird Companies, LLC srozario@thorobird.com  

Stas Zakrzewski ZH Architects sz@zh-architects.com  

mailto:matthewbrian@residualdevelopmentgroupllc.com
mailto:matthewbrian@residualdevelopmentgroupllc.com
mailto:mitaliano@svwsjmc.org
mailto:maygenmoore@gmail.com
mailto:mrosenberg@shnny.org
mailto:mhunter@trinityfinancial.com
mailto:mkornspun@pennrose.com
mailto:mwadman@phippsny.org
mailto:mdelauz@fifthave.org
mailto:nicole.r.etienne@iclinc.net
mailto:pv@vb-architects.com
mailto:patrick.hart@islg.cuny.edu
mailto:ptaylor@shorewoodgrp.com
mailto:paul.will214@gmail.com
mailto:pbeck@forsythstreet.com
mailto:rachel.goodfriend@alconsulting.us
mailto:rdeclet@acacianetwork.org
mailto:rsauer@shnny.org
mailto:riva@doe.org
mailto:rdiamond@tishmanspeyer.com
mailto:rsanborn@robertsanborndev.com
mailto:ranello@sco.org
mailto:sdavola@neighborhoodrestore.org
mailto:sfisher@brightpower.com
mailto:srozario@thorobird.com
mailto:sz@zh-architects.com
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Stephanie Becker 
Cypress Hills Local Development 
Corporation 

stephanieb@cypresshills.org  

Stephen Strateman Gotham Organization sstrateman@gothamorg.com  

Sydelle Knepper SKA Marin sknepper@skamarin.com  

Terri Belkas-
Mitchell 

Xenolith Partners terri@xenolithpartners.com  

Tiffany Pryce Dunn Development Corp. tpryce@dunndev.com  

Tony Daniels Cycle Architecture, PLLC tony@c-ap.net  

Tonya Ores 
Neighborhood Housing Services of 
Brooklyn CDC, Inc. 

Tores@nhsbrooklyn.org  

Val A. Henry 
Local Development Corporation of 
Crown Heights 

VHENRY@LDCCH.ORG  

William Brothers WQB Architecture PLLC wqbinter@gmail.com  

William D'Avella BFC Partners wdavella@bfcnyc.com  
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